
BOARD

Meeting

Thursday, 

December 14, 2023

3:30 p.m.

SRDC Board Room

Slayton, MN

1



SRDC Full Commission Membership 

One (1) County member from each of the nine counties. 

One (1) Township member from each of the nine counties. 

One (1) Mayor/Council member from each municipality over 

10,000 in population. 

One (1) Mayor/council member for each of the nine counties 

representing cities under 10,000. 

Two (2) School Board members. 

One (1) Lower Sioux Indian Community member. 

Five (5) Public Interest Groups 

SRDC Board of Director Membership 

SRDC Chairman & a regional commissioner from each county 

elected by the regional commissioners from each county and: 

One (1) Elected commissioner from each city over 10,000 in 

population. 

One (1) Elected commissioner from any county with a 

population of more than 20,000 but without a city 

over 10,000 in population nominated by the 

regional commissioners of that county. 

One (1) School board member selected by the Commission 

as a whole. 

 

Southwest Regional Development Commission 

 
Commissioner Representing 

Rick Anderson Lyon County 

Bob Byrnes City of Marshall 

Miron Carney Murray County, Immediate Past Chair 

Keith Elbers Rock County, SRDC Secretary 

Donna Gravley Cottonwood County 

Eric Hartman Region 8 School Boards 

Chris Hollingsworth Pipestone County 

Dennis Klingbile Lincoln County 

Paul Langseth Nobles County, SRDC Chair 

Richard Peterson Jackson County, SRDC Treasurer 

Bob Van Hee Redwood County 

Rick VonHoldt City of Worthington 

Dennis Welgraven Murray County, SRDC Vice-Chair 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

2



 
 BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

  

Thursday, December 14, 2023  SRDC Board Room 
3:30pm 2401 Broadway Ave, Slayton MN 

 
 

AGENDA 
# Time  Page 

1 3:30 Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance  

    

2 3:35 Introductions  
    

3 3:40 Additions to and Approval of Agenda 

Action Needed: Approve Agenda 

3 

    

4 3:45 Consent Agenda Items 

• October Receipts & Expenditures Report 

• A.C.E. Contract 

• Casey Jones Contract 

• Explore Minnesota Contract 

• Falcon Development Corporation Contract 

• Heron Lake RLF Contract 

• City of Hills Strategic Plan Contract 

• Jackson County RLF Contract 

• RMEB Contract 

• Solid Waste Contract 
Action Needed: Approve of Consent Agenda Items 

5-46 

    

5 
 

3:50 Finance Reports—Treasurer Peterson & Finance Director Nelson 

• Treasurer’s Report, including bank accounts & investments 
Action Needed: Approval of Treasurer’s Report 

• Administrative Report through October 2023 
Action Needed: Approval of Administrative Report 

47 

    

6 4:00 Budget & Personnel Committee Report—Committee Chair Peterson 

 
Action Needed: Approve Committee Recommendations 

 

    

  Audit Committee Report—Committee Chair Peterson & Finance Director Nelson  
    

7 4:10 Legislative Committee Report—Committee Chair Carney  
    

8 4:15 Deep Dive: Transportation — Planner Webb  
    

9 4:35 Executive Director’s Report— Executive Director Trusty 56-58 
    

10 4:40 Chairman’s Report—Chairman Langseth  
    

11  Unfinished Business  
    

12  New Business  
    

13  Other Issues  
    3



 
 

  ***Written Planner Reports are located on pages 30 through 38 of the meeting packet. 

For questions or additional information regarding report information, please contact staff.*** 

 

 
 
 

 14 Announcements 

• The SRDC will be closed Monday, December 25th in observance of 
Christmas and Monday, January 1st in observance of New Year’s Day 

• SRDC Full Commission will meet on Thursday, January 11th. 
          Location Slayton Pizza Ranch 

• The SRDC office will be closed Monday, January 15th in observance of 
Martin Luther King Day 

 
Board of Director photos – Thurs., Dec. 14 – please 
arrive prior to board meeting for individual photos 

 

    

 15 • Adjourn  
    

    

4



Y
T

D
 C

o
m

p
a
ri

s
o

n
 %

 o
f 

B
u

d
g

e
t

8
.3

3

F
Y

2
4

 

B
u

d
g

e
t

J
u

ly
 -

 

S
e
p

te
m

b
e
r

O
c

to
b

e
r

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e
r

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

O
c
to

b
e
r 

- 

D
e
c
e
m

b
e
r

Y
e
a
r 

to
 

D
a
te

U
n

d
e
r 

/ 
O

v
e

r 

B
u

d
g

e
t

%
 o

f 

O
v
e

ra
ll

 

B
u

d
g

e
t

E
x
p

la
n

a
ti

o
n

/C
o

m
m

e
n

ts

 R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s

T
a
x
e
s

4
4
4
,4

7
6

1
,0

2
2
.5

8
1
3
,3

3
7
.8

2
1
3
,3

3
7
.8

2
1
4
,3

6
0
.4

0
4
3
0
,1

1
5
.6

0
3
.2

%

W
he

n 
cu

rre
nt

 ta
xe

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
, p

ay
m

en
ts

 p
rim

ar
ily

 re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 D

ec
 a

nd
 

Ju
n 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

fo
r 

S
e
rv

ic
e
s

1
2
0
,4

3
5

2
6
,7

1
2
.0

1
1
3
,5

4
9
.4

8
1
3
,5

4
9
.4

8
4
0
,2

6
1
.4

9
8
0
,1

7
3
.5

1
3
3
.4

%
Ba

se
d 

on
 a

ct
iv

ity
 e

ar
ne

d 
to

 d
at

e.
 

M
n

D
O

T
-R

e
g

io
n

a
l

7
5
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

%
Ba

se
d 

on
 B

ill
in

gs
   

 Y
ea

rly
 a

m
t i

s 
$7

50
00

 
E

c
o

n
o

m
ic

 D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
A

d
m

7
0
,0

0
0

1
4
,1

3
3
.2

6
6
,0

0
9
.5

5
6
,0

0
0
.0

0
1
2
,0

0
9
.5

5
2
6
,1

4
2
.8

1
4
3
,8

5
7
.1

9
3
7
.3

%
G

ra
nt

 E
ar

ne
d 

(F
ed

er
al

 s
ha

re
)

E
D

A
 T

ra
il
s
 G

ra
n

t
1
5
0
,0

0
0

4
,9

1
9
.2

8
3
,2

3
1
.2

7
3
,2

3
1
.2

7
8
,1

5
0
.5

5
1
4
1
,8

4
9
.4

5
5
.4

%
Ba

se
d 

on
 a

ct
iv

ity
 e

ar
ne

d 
to

 d
at

e.
 (F

ed
er

al
 s

ha
re

)
R

L
F

 A
d

m
in

 (
C

o
v
id

 &
 R

e
g

u
la

r)
6
0
,0

0
0

1
6
,4

4
2
.0

3
7
,1

2
0
.6

8
7
,1

2
0
.6

8
2
3
,5

6
2
.7

1
3
6
,4

3
7
.2

9
3
9
.3

%
Ba

se
d 

on
 a

ct
iv

ity
 e

ar
ne

d 
to

 d
at

e.
 

C
E

R
T

s
 F

u
n

d
s

1
0
7
,2

5
0

1
5
,2

0
7
.7

3
1
3
,8

9
7
.7

8
1
3
,8

9
7
.7

8
2
9
,1

0
5
.5

1
7
8
,1

4
4
.4

9
2
7
.1

%

Ba
se

d 
on

 a
ct

iv
ity

 e
ar

ne
d 

to
 d

at
e.

- m
ai

n 
C

er
ts

 (n
ot

 s
ub

pr
oj

ec
ts

), 
in

cl
ud

es
 

se
ed

 g
ra

nt
s 

(a
dd

iti
on

al
 fu

nd
s 

fo
r s

ee
d 

gr
an

ts
, w

hi
ch

 e
qu

al
s 

m
or

e 
tim

e)
P

A
C

E
 l
o

a
n

 o
ri

g
/i
n

t/
m

is
c

1
9
,1

8
4

7
8
.3

2
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
7
8
.3

2
1
9
,1

0
5
.6

8
0
.4

%
Lo

an
 in

t/l
oa

n 
or

ig
 fe

e 
m

os
tly

 re
ce

iv
ed

 in
 D

ec
 a

nd
 J

un
e 

(c
od

e 
46

56
/4

32
1)

U
S

D
A

 F
o

o
d

 G
ra

n
t

6
0
,0

0
0

1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
4
5
,0

0
0
.0

0
2
5
.0

%
Ba

se
d 

on
 B

illi
ng

s 
(8

00
 h

ou
rs

 a
t $

75
/h

r f
or

 th
e 

ye
ar

)
In

te
re

s
t 

&
 M

is
c
e
ll
a
n

e
o

u
s

6
,8

0
0

2
,2

5
4
.0

4
4
3
.6

5
4
3
.6

5
2
,2

9
7
.6

9
4
,5

0
2
.3

1
3
3
.8

%
Ba

nk
 in

t/l
oa

n 
or

ig
 fe

e 

T
o

ta
l 

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s

1
,1

1
3
,1

4
5

9
5
,7

6
9
.2

5
5
7
,1

9
0
.2

3
6
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
6
3
,1

9
0
.2

3
1
5
8
,9

5
9
.4

8
9
5
4
,1

8
5
.5

2
1
4

.3
%

33
,8

04

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 E

x
p

e
n

s
e
s

3
0
,3

0
0

6
,6

9
1
.3

1
2
,4

4
0
.2

3
2
,4

4
0
.2

3
9
,1

3
1
.5

4
2
1
,1

6
8
.4

6
3
0
.1

%

S
a
la

ri
e
s
 &

 F
ri

n
g

e
8
6
3
,7

9
1

1
6
6
,5

7
4
.6

3
8
3
,7

9
1
.9

2
8
3
,7

9
1
.9

2
2
5
0
,3

6
6
.5

5
6
1
3
,4

2
4
.4

5
2
9
.0

%
O

ct
ob

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 u

ne
m

pl
oy

m
en

t p
ai

d
T

ra
v
e
l

3
0
,0

0
0

1
2
,8

0
4
.1

9
4
,1

7
4
.1

4
4
,1

7
4
.1

4
1
6
,9

7
8
.3

3
1
3
,0

2
1
.6

7
5
6
.6

%

O
ff

ic
e
 S

p
a
c
e
 C

o
s
ts

4
4
,1

9
4

2
,1

8
4
.2

1
8
4
4
.1

2
8
4
4
.1

2
3
,0

2
8
.3

3
4
1
,1

6
5
.6

7
6
.9

%

P
o

s
ta

g
e
 (

o
n

 h
a
n

d
, 
n

o
t 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 H

s
g

 R
e
im

b
)

4
,8

6
3

8
4
.9

2
1
,0

0
9
.9

9
1
,0

0
9
.9

9
1
,0

9
4
.9

1
3
,7

6
8
.0

9
2
2
.5

%

C
o

m
m

u
n

ic
a
ti

o
n

s
6
,8

1
9

1
,2

7
7
.9

2
4
1
2
.1

0
4
1
2
.1

0
1
,6

9
0
.0

2
5
,1

2
8
.9

8
2
4
.8

%

P
ri

n
ti

n
g

/P
u

b
li
c
a
ti

o
n

2
0
,5

0
4

5
,2

5
8
.1

2
1
,5

3
6
.3

4
1
,5

3
6
.3

4
6
,7

9
4
.4

6
1
3
,7

0
9
.5

4
3
3
.1

%
co

pi
er

/p
rin

te
r t

oo
In

s
u

ra
n

c
e

5
,9

1
7

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
,9

1
7
.0

0
0
.0

%
In

su
ra

nc
e 

di
vi

de
nd

/B
ui

ld
in

g 
In

su
ra

nc
e

S
u

p
p

li
e
s

1
7
,0

0
0

9
0
6
.3

5
2
,3

9
5
.3

9
2
,3

9
5
.3

9
3
,3

0
1
.7

4
1
3
,6

9
8
.2

6
1
9
.4

%

P
ro

g
ra

m
 S

u
p

p
ly

 (
E

D
A

)
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
#
D

IV
/0

!

P
ro

g
ra

m
 S

u
p

p
ly

 (
T

ra
il
s
 E

D
A

)
0

0
.0

0
8
4
0
.0

0
8
4
0
.0

0
8
4
0
.0

0
-8

4
0
.0

0
#
D

IV
/0

!

P
ro

g
ra

m
 S

u
p

p
ly

 (
M

N
D

O
T

)
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
#
D

IV
/0

!

C
o

m
p

u
te

r
3
7
,7

5
0

1
1
,3

9
9
.4

5
3
,4

4
4
.8

6
3
,4

4
4
.8

6
1
4
,8

4
4
.3

1
2
2
,9

0
5
.6

9
3
9
.3

%

A
u

d
it

s
2
0
,0

0
0

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
2
0
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

%

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a
n

t/
C

o
n

tr
a
c
te

d
 S

e
rv

ic
e
s
/L

e
g

a
l

2
,7

5
0

7
4
6
.2

5
6
5
4
.7

2
6
5
4
.7

2
1
,4

0
0
.9

7
1
,3

4
9
.0

3
5
0
.9

%

D
u

e
s
/M

e
m

b
e
rs

h
ip

s
 &

 O
th

e
r

7
,2

0
0

1
,0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
,0

0
0
.0

0
6
,2

0
0
.0

0
1
3
.9

%

F
in

a
n

c
in

g
 F

e
e
s
 &

 E
x
p

e
n

s
e
s

5
,5

0
0

1
7
4
.8

7
1
5
.2

5
1
5
.2

5
1
9
0
.1

2
5
,3

0
9
.8

8
3
.5

%

E
q

u
ip

m
e
n

t/
B

u
il
d

in
g

 U
p

d
a
te

s
1
9
,2

0
7

9
,0

2
9
.3

6
2
5
8
.2

6
2
5
8
.2

6
9
,2

8
7
.6

2
9
,9

1
9
.3

8
4
8
.4

%

P
A

C
E

 l
o

a
n

 i
n

te
re

s
t 

p
a
id

5
0
8

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
5
0
8
.0

0
0
.0

%
Pa

id
 in

 D
ec

em
be

r a
nd

 J
un

e 
 **

an
 a

m
t w

ill
 b

e 
in

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
02

3*
*

D
e
b

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
:P

ri
n

. 
&

 I
n

t.
1
1
,6

3
3

0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
1
,6

3
3
.0

0
0
.0

%
Pa

id
 in

 D
ec

em
be

r 
B

u
il
d

in
g

 L
e
a
s
e
 P

ri
n

c
ip

a
l 
P

y
m

t
2
3
,0

8
5

5
,3

7
0
.0

1
1
,8

0
6
.6

5
1
,8

0
6
.6

5
7
,1

7
6
.6

6
1
5
,9

0
8
.3

4
3
1
.1

%
O

ur
 p

or
tio

n 
of

 le
as

e 
py

m
t

0
.0

0

T
o

ta
l 

E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s
1
,1

5
1
,0

2
1

2
2
3
,5

0
1
.5

9
1
0
3
,6

2
3
.9

7
0
.0

0
0
.0

0
1
0
3
,6

2
3
.9

7
3
2
7
,1

2
5
.5

6
8
2
3
,8

9
5
.4

4
2
8

.4
%

R
e
v
e
n

u
e
s
 O

v
e
r 

(U
n

d
e
r)

 E
x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

s
-3

7
,8

7
6

-1
2
7
,7

3
2
.3

4
-1

6
8

,1
6

6

-1
68

,1
66

S
o

u
th

w
e

s
t 

R
e
g

io
n

a
l 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n

M
o

n
th

 E
n

d
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
2

3
 F

is
c

a
l 
Y

e
a

r 
2

0
2

4

5



6



3

7



8



9



10



11

 

1 
 

G:\WF\FINANCE\Contract\ACE Jan-Dec24TechService.doc 

 
 
 

SOUTHWEST REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
CONTRACT WITH 

A.C.E. OF SOUTHWEST MINNESOTA 
FOR 

TECHNICAL SERVICES 
 
 
THIS CONTRACT for technical services is entered into this 1ST day of January, 2024, by and 
between the Southwest Regional Development Commission (SRDC), and A.C.E. of Southwest 
Minnesota (A.C.E.). 
 
WITNESSED; In consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein contained, the 
SRDC and A.C.E. agree to the following terms and conditions: 
 
The Term of this agreement commences January 1, 2024 and shall continue through December 
31, 2024.  The following work activities will be provided: 
 
 
 
I. Financial Services will be provided to A.C.E. as per the attached work activity list-
including A.C.E. responsibilities. Reports will be provided showing the hours worked by 
individual staff members included in the monthly report billed.  Financial Services include 
staff member’s salaries, leave and fringe and administrative support for use of supplies, 
computer and other items necessary to work completion. A budget of $15,000 
is included here for financial services. (Exhibit A) 
 
 
II. Support Services will be provided to A.C.E. as per the attached work activity list. 
Reports will be provided showing the hours worked by individual staff members included 
in the monthly report billed.  Support Services include staff member’s salaries, leave and 
fringe and administrative support for use of supplies, computer and other items necessary 
to work completion. A budget of $23,000 is included here for support services. (Exhibit B) 
 
 
III. Payment for Services 
 

A. A.C.E. will make payment to the SRDC.  Statements will be billed monthly.   
 

B. A.C.E. will be billed for costs incurred by the SRDC to perform services listed on 
the attached exhibits.  

 
IV. Hold Harmless 
 
A.C.E. agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the SRDC against any legal actions brought by 
any personal entity whatsoever arising out of or claimed to be arising out of the performance of 
either party under this agreement for services. 
 
A.C.E. agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the SRDC against any action legal and/or 
administrative for any A.C.E./RSVP performance prior to December 31, 2006. 
 



 

2 
 

G:\WF\FINANCE\Contract\A.C.E. Jan-Dec24TechService.doc page 2 

 
 
 
V. Cancellation 
 
This agreement may be cancelled by A.C.E. or SRDC at any time, with cause, upon ninety (90) 
days written notice to the other party.  In the event of such a cancellation, SRDC shall be entitled 
to payment, determined on a pro-rata basis, for work or services satisfactorily performed. 
 
VI. Assignment 
 
SRDC shall neither assign nor transfer any rights or obligations under this agreement without 
prior written consent of A.C.E.   
 
VII. Staffing 
 
The SRDC reserves the right to utilize the most appropriate personnel and/or time availability of 
staff members to perform the stated activities. 
 
VIII. Amendments 
 
Any amendments to this agreement shall be in writing and shall be executed by the same parties 
who executed the original agreement or their successors in office. 
 
 
 
 
SOUTHWEST REGIONAL   A.C.E. OF SOUTHWEST MINNESOTA 
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION   
 
 
______________________   _________________________ 
Chairperson     Chairperson 
 
 
______________________   _________________________ 
Executive Director    Board Member 
 
Date _________________   Date ____________________ 
 
 
 

12



13

 

3 
 

  
G:\WF\FINANCE\Contract\ACE Jan-Dec24TechService.doc  page 3 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Financial Services Work Activity list 
 
 

 Maintain an accounting system using Quickbooks for A.C.E. activities on a Calendar Year 
basis.  All revenues and expenses will be included by separate project areas as set up to 
track activities of A.C.E.  Payroll, taxes, payables and related activities will be completed. 

 A separate checking account will be maintained with other accounts as deemed 
appropriate. 

 Requests of funds will be completed as instructed by Joint Powers Board for county per 
capita fees and as requested by the A.C.E. Executive Director. 

 Input journal entries for match, quarterly updates, grant or project yearend.  
 Work with the A.C.E. Executive Director on general financial administration assistance 

and/or referrals to agencies that can address concerns of A.C.E. in relation to tax 
information, insurance, etc. 

 Financial sections of any required grant/contract budgets, reports and updates will be 
prepared as needed. Grant analyses will be completed as deemed necessary.   
 
 

 
A.C.E. Responsibilities 
 

 Provide the SRDC with all approved expenditures and financial information necessary to 
properly account for A.C.E. project funds in a timely manner. 

 Provide information to SRDC to request per capita fees and any other funds 
 Provide completed timesheets, expense sheets and volunteer information as needed to 

properly record payments and categorize expenses or match requirements. 
 Update Program Managers and oversee work activities, match and timelines for financial 

work completion. 
 Provide match, primarily in-kind, documented, and project specific ready for journal entry 

input. 
 A budget will be prepared with updates as necessary. 
 Provide any necessary information in completing reports for contract/grant information for 

grantor organizations. 
 Financial sections of any required grant/contract budgets, reports and updates will be 

prepared. Year-end closeout spreadsheets will be finalized to aid in closeout procedures 
of the financial records.  The 990 will be completed. 

 



 

4 
 

G:\WF\FINANCE\Contract\ACE Jan-Dec24TechService.doc  page 4 

 

EXHIBIT B 
 

Support Services Work Activity list 
 

Database Activities: 
 
1.) Enter Station timesheets, new Volunteer sheets & new Stations information. 
 
2.) Calculate, verify & approve Volunteer expense sheets to be processed. 
 
3.) Keep Program Managers updated on Stations that report and do not report and 

any Volunteers listed who are not in the database. 
 

4.) Update Volunteers & Stations in Volunteer Reporter Software. 
 

5.) Setup appropriate welcome letters for new Volunteers & new Stations. 
 

6.) Run-off Station sheets for Program Managers to take & deliver or send out. 
 

7.) Track stations that need new MOU’s. 
 

8.) Retrieve information on Volunteer Reporter Software for monthly & quarterly reports. 
 

9.) Keep SharePoint updated with current forms, updated time and expense sheets, etc. 
 

10.) Input number served for each station into Volunteer Reporter database for grant 

reporting. 

 
11.) Keep database updated with inactive volunteers and stations. Clean up database 

and station sheets as needed. 

 
Support Activities: 

 
1.) Log in-coming checks and copy for finance. 

2.) Stamp checks when appropriate. 

3.) Send out welcome letters, volunteer handbook, and volunteer insurance 

brochure to new volunteers and stations. 

4.) Put stamps on mail and take to post office. 

5.) Reconcile bank statements monthly. 

6.) Help with grant writing and grant reporting as requested by Director. 

 

14



15

 

5 
 

G:\WF\FINANCE\Contract\ACE Jan-Dec24TechService.doc  page 4 

 

EXHIBIT B (Continued) 
 

Support Services Work Activity list 
 

7.) Copy new volunteer and station enrollment forms for each Program Manager for 

their files.  File originals at the SRDC office. 

8.) Mail volunteer expense checks and forms. 

9.) Tally Performance Measure surveys. 

10.) Miscellaneous support activities as directed by the Director. 
 

Program Manager Support Activities: 
 

1.) Provide Program Managers with requested copies of forms, labels, information, 
etc. 

 
2.) Copy off newsletters, flyers, etc. as requested.  
 
3.) Look up volunteer information as needed. 
 
4.) Help with questions on SharePoint. 
 
5.) Update all time and expense sheets each pay period as well as budget sheets 

and leave balances. 
 
6.) Miscellaneous support activities as directed by the Program Mangers and/or 

Director. 
 
 

 
 



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29

 

 1 

 

 

November 22, 2023 

 

City of Hills, MN  

Attn: Connie Wiertzema  

City Clerk-Treasurer 

City of Hills 

301 S Main Ave. 

Hills, MN 56138 

Re: Community Strategic Planning 

Dear Connie,  

After the city council voted to move forward with working with the SRDC on a strategic plan I 

am sending over the following proposal and contract. I am looking forward to working with you 

and the community of Hills in developing community priorities.  

Should you or your council members have any questions regarding this proposal, please do 

not hesitate to contact me. We appreciate the opportunity to work with Hills on this project.  

Sincerely,  

 

Christopher Webb  

Transportation Planner 

Southwest Minnesota Regional Development Commission   



30

 

 2 

Scope of Work 

Engaging with the Community (January – February)  
• Facilitate 3 public engagement focus groups (city council, school, other). 
• Create a community survey. 

 
Identifying Priorities (February – March) 

• Collect and analyze community survey results.  
• Research project examples. 
• Facilitate Work Session with the city council on identifying priorities. 

  
Developing a Work Plan (March – April) 

• Develop a work plan in which all identified projects are prioritized and specific 
actions are developed as much as possible: who, when, how, and how much.  

 
Final Presentation / Next Steps (May – September) 

• SRDC staff will present a strategic final plan to the city council (May). 
• Work with city staff and an attorney to develop a new city zoning ordinance.  
 

 

City Responsibilities 

This project requires significant participation from the city council and community. We 

kindly request the following from the City:  

o Promote community meetings, and the community survey.  

o Set dates and times for community engagement focus groups.  

o Schedule, conduct, mail and print information for City public hearings/meetings 

as required and assure that all publication and notification requirements are met. 

o Ensure legal notices for the adoption of plans, zoning changes, public meetings, 

public hearings and/or other work sessions of the council meet the legal 

publication requirements. 

o Pay for all costs related to public hearings and corresponding publications and 

notifications. 

o Pay for all direct costs associated with the work of this contract including but not 

limited to: printing, postage, supplies, and travel; 

o Provide the SRDC with specific information, plans and documents as needed to 

complete the process. 



31

 

 3 

Professional Fees 

Breakdown of estimated costs: 

Plan Activity / Work 
 

Estimated Cost 

Planning Preparations & Project Research (30) $3,000 
3 Community Focus Groups (15) $1,500 
Community Survey – Developing & Completing Analysis (15) $1,500 
Materials, Printing and Mileage (estimated) $1,000 
Developing the Final Strategic Plan (20) $2,000 
Final Presentation (5) $500 

Strategic Plan Sub-Total $9,500 
  
Developing Land Use Map (10) $1,000 
Developing New City Ordinance (15) $1,500 
  

Zoning Ordinance Sub-Total $2,500 
  

Project Total $12,000 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



32

 

 4 

CONTRACT FOR TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 

 

SOUTHWEST REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
AND THE CITY OF HILLS, MN 

 
WHEREAS, this Contract for Services is by and between the City of HILLS, 
MINNESOTA, hereinafter referred to as the CITY, and the SOUTHWEST REGIONAL 
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION, hereinafter referred to as the SRDC; and  
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of this Contract is to provide a mutual understanding 
concerning the services to be rendered to the CITY by the SRDC; and   
 
WHEREAS, the nature of the said services is to assist the CITY with strategic planning 
and community engagement; and  
 
WHEREAS, the SRDC agrees to provide technical assistance as required in this 
Contract and shall begin to provide said services beginning January 1, 2023; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and promises between 
the parties hereto, it is agreed: 
 
 
SECTION I. SCOPE OF WORK / CITY RESPONSIBILITIES 

 
  The Scope of Work Section states the responsibilities of the SRDC.  
 
  The City Responsibilities Section states the responsibilities of the City.  
 
 
SECTION II.  CONTRACT PERIOD 

 
A. Services provided under the terms of this Contract will be performed January 

2024 – September 2024. 
 
B.  The time period for this Contract may be amended upon request and signed  
 approval by both the SRDC and CITY. 

 
SECTION III.  COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES 

 
A. The SRDC shall be compensated for services provided in Section I of this 

Contract. 
 
B. The CITY agrees to pay the SRDC the rate of $100/hour.  



33

 

 5 

C. Expenses for travel, printing, postage, etc. will be billed separately. As work 
progresses, if expenses near the estimate identified in the proposal SRDC 
staff will contact the City regarding the status prior to doing additional work; 
 

D. The SRDC will provide the CITY with a final invoice indicating services 
provided and the total amount due. 
 

E. Our fees for these services are generally based on time expended and out-of-
pocket expenses, such as report production, postage, travel, etc. However, 
they might also include other factors deemed relevant, including the skill 
required to perform the services properly; time limitations imposed by either 
you or the circumstances; and ability of the SRDC staff assigned to the 
project. 

  
F. The contract fees are based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel 

and the assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered 
during the contract. If significant additional time is necessary, we will discuss 
it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional 
costs.  

 
SECTION IV.  GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
A. Changes in SRDC Services 
 In the event the CITY requests additional service from that described in 

Section I, and such services are to be completed by the SRDC, the SRDC 
shall be entitled to additional compensation as agreed to by both the SRDC 
and CITY.  This Contract shall be amended, or a new contract shall be 
created to reflect additional services and compensation. 

 
B. Liability 
 The CITY agrees to waive the SRDC and the SRDC’s commissioners, 

officers, directors, employees, partners, and agents of any legal liability 
relating to the preparation, implementation and/or enforcement of services 
provided and/or products/projects produced. 

 
C. Indemnification 

In the performance of this Contract, the City must indemnify, save, and hold 
harmless the SRDC from any claims or causes of action, including attorney’s 
fees incurred, to the extent caused by the City’s:  

• Intentional, willful, or negligent acts or omissions; or  
• Actions that give rise to strict liability; or  
• Breach of contract or warranty. 

 



34

 

 6 

D. Termination 
This agreement may be terminated with or without cause by either the SRDC 
or CITY upon fourteen (14) days prior written notice.  

 
In the event of termination, the CITY shall be obligated to the SRDC for 
payment of amounts due and owing including payment for services performed 
or furnished to the date of termination, computed in accordance with Section 
III of this Contract agreement. 

 
E. Severability 

Any provision or part of this Contract held to be void or unenforceable under 
any law or regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions 
shall continue to be valid and binding upon the SRDC and CITY, who agree 
that the Contract shall be reformed to replace such stricken provision or part 
thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible 
to expressing the intentions of the stricken provision. 

 
 
SECTION VI.  ACCEPTANCE 

 
The SRDC and CITY hereby accept this Contract.  The parties hereto have 
caused this Contract to be duly executed. 

   
 
 
 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
CHAIR, SRDC COMMISSION  MAYOR - CITY OF HILLS, MN 
 
          
 
Date: _________________________ Date: _____________________________ 
 
       
______________________________ ATTEST: 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, SRDC 
         __________________________________ 
 
 
Date: _________________________ Title: _____________________________ 

 
Date: _____________________________ 



35



36



37



38



39

"G:\WORKFOLDER\FINANCE\Contract Work\RMEB\RMEB24TechService.docx" 

 1

 

SOUTHWEST REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
CONTRACT WITH 

RURAL MINNESOTA ENERGY BOARD 
FOR 

TECHNICAL SERVICES 

THIS CONTRACT, for technical services is entered into this 1ST day of January, 2024, by and 
between the Southwest Regional Development Commission (SRDC), and the Rural Minnesota 
Energy Board (RMEB). 

WITNESSED; In consideration of the mutual promises and covenants herein contained, the 
SRDC and the RMEB agree to the following terms and conditions: 

The Term of this contract commences January 1, 2024 and shall continue through December 31, 
2024.  The following work activities will be provided: 

I. Professional Services will be provided to the Rural Minnesota Energy Board as per 
the attached work activity list.  (Exhibit A) 

II. Financial Services will be provided to the Rural Minnesota Energy Board as per the 
attached work activity list-including RMEB responsibilities. (Exhibit B) 

III. Support Services will be provided to the Rural Minnesota Energy Board as per the 
attached work activity list. (Exhibit C) 

IV. Payment for Services 
A. The RMEB will make payment to the SRDC.  Statements will be billed in 

conjunction with regular meetings of the RMEB.   

B. The following rates apply for Calendar Year 2024 and are based on the activity to 
be performed as per Exhibits A-C. 

o Exhibit A - $100.00 Planner - $150.00 Director 

o Exhibit B - $80.00 

o Exhibit C - $45.00 

V. Hold Harmless 
RMEB agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the SRDC against any legal actions brought by 
any personal entity whatsoever arising out of or claimed to be arising out of the performance of 
either party under this agreement for services. 

 

 

VI. Cancellation 

This contract may be cancelled by the RMEB or SRDC at any time, with cause, upon thirty (30) 
days written notice to the other party.  In the event of such a cancellation, SRDC shall be entitled 
to payment, determined on a pro-rata basis, for work or services satisfactorily performed. 



40

"G:\WORKFOLDER\FINANCE\Contract Work\RMEB\RMEB24TechService.docx" 

 2

VII. Assignment 

SRDC shall neither assign nor transfer any rights or obligations under this contract without prior 
written consent of the RMEB.  The SRDC reserves the right to utilize the most appropriate 
personnel and/or time availability of staff members to perform the stated activities. 

VIII. Amendments 

Any amendments to this contract shall be in writing, and shall be executed by the same parties 
who executed the original contract or their successors in office. 

SOUTHWEST REGIONAL RURAL MINNESOTA 
DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION ENERGY BOARD 

_____________________________ ______________________________ 
 Chairperson Chairperson 

 
_____________________________ ______________________________ 
 Executive Director Board Member 

Date: ________________________ Date: ______________________________ 

 

It should be noted that billable expense will be limited to tasks not normal to the Overall 
Work Program of the SRDC. 

  



41

"G:\WORKFOLDER\FINANCE\Contract Work\RMEB\RMEB24TechService.docx" 

 3

EXHIBIT A – PROFESSIONAL SERVICES  

The following Work Program guidelines will be used to administer this project. 

Objective: To staff the Rural Minnesota Energy Board.  Staffing of the RMEB shall include 
the following work elements: 

Professional Staff: 

 Provide staff assistance to the Rural Minnesota Energy Board. 

 Compilation of information as requested by the Rural Minnesota Energy Board.  

 Assist in disseminating pertinent RMEB information.  

 Complete staff analysis of energy proposals affecting the Rural Minnesota Energy 
Board. 

 Promote cooperative solutions to various energy situations. 

 Assist in energy grant writing and planning. 

 Drafting correspondence of the Rural Minnesota Energy Board. 

 Coordination of tasks of the Rural Minnesota Energy Board. 

EXHIBIT B – FINANCIAL SERVICES  

 Maintain an accounting system with a separate fund code for RMEB activities on a 
Calendar Year basis.  All revenues and expenses will be included by separate project 
areas as set up to track activities of the RMEB.  

 A financial status report will be provided to all regular meetings of RMEB and other 
meetings as requested. 

 Financial sections of any required grant/contract reports and updates will be prepared 
as needed. 

 Requests of funds will be completed as instructed-annually for county membership 
fees or as indicated in grant or contract agreements. 

 A separate savings account will be maintained with transfers made to the general 
SRDC checking account as expenditures are paid on behalf of RMEB. 

 Prepare general financial administration assistance and/or referrals to agencies that 
can address concerns of the RMEB in relation to tax information, insurance, etc. 

 The RMEB financial information will be included in the annual SRDC audit. 

RMEB Responsibilities  



42

"G:\WORKFOLDER\FINANCE\Contract Work\RMEB\RMEB24TechService.docx" 

 4

 Provide the SRDC with all approved expenditures and financial information necessary 
to properly account for the RMEB project funds in a timely manner. 

 Keep all contract/grant information current with any grantor organizations and provide 
any necessary information in completing reports. 

 Provide information to SRDC to request membership fees and any other funds. 

 Pay the SRDC $300 for inclusion of financial records in the annual fiscal year audit. 

 

EXHIBIT C - SUPPORT SERVICES  

Support Staff: (charges will be incurred in this area only when no professional staff hours 
are charged in conjunction). 

 Type, copy, mail or distribute, and file all written material prepared for the RMEB 
including meeting notices, agenda, minutes, correspondence, reports, studies, 
surveys, etc. 

 Update all the RMEB mailing lists and committee rosters. 

 Set up meeting facilities as designated by the RMEB. 

 



43

G:\WF\finance\solidwaste\swregionalsolidwastecontracts\sowacomm-24 

1 

SOUTHWEST REGIONAL DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION (SRDC) 
Contract With The 

SOUTHWEST REGIONAL SOLID WASTE COMMISSION (SRSWC) 

General. This Agreement is entered into by and between the Southwest Regional 
Development Commission, hereinafter referred to as the "SRDC", and the Southwest Regional 
Solid Waste Commission, hereinafter referred to as the "SRSWC". 

I. Contract Agreement: 

A. The work program attached to this contract is acceptable to the SRSWC and is 
hereby made a part of this contract. 

B. The work elements specified in this contract shall be completed during the period 
of January 1, 2024 through December 31, 2024 unless the contract period is 
extended by mutual agreement between the parties of this contract. 

II. Financial Participation: The SRDC shall make available personnel with the necessary 
training and experience to accomplish the assigned tasks.  Professional staff services 
provided by the SRDC shall be: 

Planning assistant staff at a rate of $60 per hour.  Responsibilities shall include sending 
out meeting invites, taking meeting minutes and preparing meeting materials as 
requested. 

Planning staff at a rate of $90 per hour.  Responsibilities will include arranging and 
providing technical assistance that is not covered by regional planning efforts.  

Other charges directly reimbursable to the SRDC by the SRSWC are:  Mileage, at the 
SRDC's established rate of reimbursement; Meals; Meeting Expenses; and other expenses 
as authorized by the SRSWC. 

III. Payment for Services Performed: The SRSWC will make payment to the SRDC.  
Statements will be billed in conjunction with regular meetings of the SRSWC.   

IV. Independent Contractor Status:  The SRDC is to be and shall remain an independent 
contractor with respect to any and all work performed under this Contract.  It is agreed 
that nothing herein contained is intended or should be construed in any manner as 
creating or establishing the relationship of co-partners between the parties hereto or as 
constituting SRDC as the agent, representative or employee of the SRSWC or any purpose 
or in any manner whatsoever. SRDC acknowledges and agrees that SRDC is not entitled 
to receive any of the benefits received by SRSWC employees and is not eligible for worker’ 
or unemployment compensation benefits under the SRSWC.  SRDC also acknowledges 
and agrees that no withholding or deduction for state or federal income taxes, FICA, FUTA, 
or otherwise, will be made from the payment due SRDC and that it is SRDC’s sole 
obligation to comply with the applicable provisions of all federal and state tax laws. 



44

G:\WF\finance\solidwaste\swregionalsolidwastecontracts\sowacomm-24 

2 

V. Audit and Inspection: Accounts and records related to the funds provided under this 
contract shall be accessible to authorized representatives of the SRSWC for the purposes 
of examination and audit. 

VI. Hold Harmless:  SRSWC agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the SRDC against any legal 
actions brought by any personal entity whatsoever arising out of or claimed to be arising 
out of the performance of either party under this agreement for services. 

VII. Miscellaneous: 

A. The contract shall be subject to all pertinent state statutes and regulations. 

B. The contract shall be subject to modification at any time provided there is mutual 
agreement between the SRDC and SRSWC on the nature of the modification. 

C. Any portion of this contract deemed invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction 
shall be held severable and shall not affect the remaining portions. 

IN WITNESS, WHEREOF, THE SRDC has caused this contract to be duly executed on its behalf and 
the SRSWC has caused the same to be duly executed on its behalf. 

SOUTHWEST REGIONAL SOUTHWEST REGIONAL 
SOLID WASTE COMMISSION DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 

    

 Authorized Official Authorized Official 

    

 Attested By Attested By 

Date:  Date:  

  



45

G:\WF\finance\solidwaste\swregionalsolidwastecontracts\sowacomm-24 

3 

WORK PROGRAM 

The following Work Program guidelines will be used to administer this project. 

Objective: To staff the Southwest Regional Solid Waste Commission. Staffing of the 
Southwest Regional Solid Waste Commission shall include the following types of 
work elements: 

SRDC Planning Assistant Staff: 

o Provide staff assistance to the Southwest Regional Solid Waste Commission. 

o Type, copy, mail or distribute, and file all written material prepared for the SRSWC 
including meeting notices, agenda, minutes, correspondence, reports, studies, 
surveys, etc. 

o Update all the SRSWC mailing lists and committee rosters. 

o Set up meeting facilities as designated by the SRSWC. 

o Prepare and mail the Meeting Agenda and associated materials as instructed by the 
SRSWC Chairperson. 

o Drafting correspondence of the Southwest Regional Solid Waste Commission. 

 

SRDC Planning Staff 

o Compilation of information as requested by the Southwest Regional Solid Waste 
Commission. 

o Assist in disseminating pertinent SRSWC information. 

o Complete staff analysis of Solid Waste proposals affecting the Southwest Regional Solid 
Waste Commission. 

o Promote cooperative solutions to various solid waste situations. 

o Assist in solid waste grant writing and planning. 

o Coordination of tasks the Southwest Regional Solid Waste Commission requests of the 
Solid Waste Administrators. 

 

 



46

G:\WF\finance\solidwaste\swregionalsolidwastecontracts\sowacomm-24 

4 

General:  

o The SRDC Staff shall be supervised by the Southwest Regional Solid Waste Commission in 
cooperation with the SRDC Director.  

o The SRDC Director will provide other staff as deemed necessary to assist in completion of 
the work elements.  



47

f:\...\finance\board\BANKACCT INFO\BANKACCT -Current FY\bankacctFY24Entire Year.xls

INVESTMENTS -General Fund APY

Bank Amount Due Date Interest Rate

United Prairie Bank - Worthington  $                100,000.00 5/25/2024 4.45%

Jackson Federal Savings & Loan-Jackson 104,310.86                  01/20/24 4.05%

Currie State Bank-Currie 112,095.31                  09/02/24 5.09%

First Independent Bank-Russell (I have emailed Bank for Dec CD Rates) 103,764.94                  12/05/23 1.50%

Investors Choice - Slayton 102,065.77                  08/02/24 4.65%

Minnwest Bank Slayton 100,000.00                  02/15/24 2.00%

NOTE: The security deposit for the office building in the amount of $50,000 is at the Slayton City Clerk's office at an

investment rate of .75% .  We currently have extra security at Minnwest Bank-Slayton and

United Prairie Bank-Worthington to allow deposits above FDIC limits.

TOTAL INVESTMENTS 622,236.88                  

ACCOUNTS-Dedicated and Undedicated Funds Program Accounts 11/30/2023

Minnwest Bank South-Slayton Checking 3,000.00$                    

Minnwest Bank South-Slayton Savings 377,418.04                  

Minnwest Bank South-Slayton Savings-F & H 1,928.56                      

First Independent Bank-Russell  Savings 40,567.62                    

United Prairie Bank-Worthington Savings 61,108.12                    

Jackson Federal S&L-Jackson  Savings 150,180.60                  

TOTAL CASH ACCOUNTS   634,202.94$                

Approximate Designated Funds-Projects

    Regional Cultural Diversity Coalition -$                             

    MN Rural Broadband Coalition -                               

    Assigned Funds (11,296.85)                   

Committed to:  Acquisition of Capital Assets-Equipment (91,318.26)                   

Committed to:  Acquisition of Capital Assets-Building (243,151.09)                 

Committed to:  Unemployment Claims (53,013.00)                   

Committed to:  Employee Retirement Transition (10,973.00)                   

Compensated Absences Payable (56,502.00)                   

(466,254.20)$               

11/30/2022

Total Investments 622,236.88$                414,139.85$                

Total Cash Accounts 634,202.94$                638,242.93$                

Total Dedicated Funds (466,254.20)$               (468,267.69)$               

790,185.62$                584,115.09$                

SPECIAL REVENUE ACCOUNTS-NonAdministrative

EDA Planning Funds 50$                              

EDA Revolving Loan Funds-(business loans only) 354,272                       Total EDA RLF

Currie State Bank-RLF Savings-(business loans only) 2,585                           356,857                       

C-EDA Revolving Loan Funds-(business loans only) 276,444                       

PACE Funds-(loans only) 123,520                       PACE Loan Funds

PACE Funds-SEP-(loans only) 136,666                       260,186                       

PACE Funds-(Electric Companies-funds to pay off loans & admin) 29,677                         

PACE  (County Funds used to pay down on REED loan)   $88,704 -                                   

TOTAL SPECIAL FUNDS   923,214$                     

 

TREASURER'S REPORT

MONTH END November 30, 2023

Bank Account Information

   TOTAL DEDICATED FUNDS

TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE FOR CASHFLOW (



48

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
December 2023 

 CEDS| EDA PLANNING 

COMPREHENSIVE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY (CEDS) 

Our current CEDS can be found at http://www.swrdc.org/wp-content/uploads/2022/01/CEDS-2022-2027.pdf. CEDS in MN across the 
EDA (Economic Development Administration) Economic Development Districts (EDDs) follow the format of the Minnesota Association 
of Development Organizations (MADO) DevelopMN. The latest DevelopMN can be found at http://www.mnado.org/wp-content/up-
loads/2019/11/DevelopMN-1.pdf.   

EDA PLANNING 

EDA Investment Opportunities:  Priorities can be found at https://eda.gov/about/investment-priorities/. Priorities include Equity, Re-
covery and Resilience, Workforce Development, Manufacturing, Technology-Based Economic Development, Environmentally Sustain-
able Development, and Exports and Foreign Direct Investment.  

The latest NOFO for disaster funds can be found at Fiscal Year 2023 Disaster Supplemental | U.S. Economic Development Administra-
tion (eda.gov).   The following counties are eligible under the disaster distress criteria:  Jackson, Lincoln, Lyon, Nobles, Redwood, and 
Rock.    

Staff submitted the following applications on December 1. 
Energy Resiliency Project- substation transformer addition- City of Adrian 
$3,258,900 Project Cost- 80% Grant request/20% Match 
Water Resiliency Project- water source- City of Lamberton 
$1,384,000 Project Cost- 80% Grant request/20% Match   

Childcare Technical Assistance: Staff played an integral role in the submission of the DEED (Department of Employment and Economic 
Development) Childcare Economic Development grant proposal for renovations to a main street tax-forfeited building to house three 
separate family childcare providers in Hills. The City of Hills was awarded $120,000 for this project. A final request for funds is expected 
to be submitted by year end.   

Southwest Minnesota Youth Committee: The committee meets in February, May, August, and November. The new coordinator for this 
group is Maria Peters from SWPIC.  This group gathers members who support career and technical education programs and educate 
students and parents about local career and training opportunities. The committee last met on November 2.  

Southwest Regional Transportation Coordinating Council (RTCC): The group last met on September 20 and will meet again on Decem-
ber 20. SRDC represents economic development on the council.  

Friends in the Field: The group last met on October 11 with a focus on the public and economic value of community events and festi-
vals.  Speakers were from the Tourism Center at the U of M and Community Growth, Equity, and Inclusion at the City of Willmar.  
Here is the link: https://umn.zoom.us/rec/play/0-4tW28Q4ykHyGmlewC--wxhXc7rEz0p2E7QeuRBMMExYNetd6srECPnHT0g0uQ3dl-
jFsawMm36UxdQ.H15KyRtgn791tH_K?canPlayFromShare=true&from=my_recording&continueMode=true&componentNam-
e=rec-play&originRequestUrl=https%3A%2F%2Fumn.zoom.us%2Frec%2Fshare%2FfFz_seLt1bd0qSzib6zgqGLqHYMWL49YyRRh-
MEUnzFVqMDOcsaEpuoWOvKZ2rPel.wt2zdDPCG_ObSCmg
The topic for January is: Shared Power in Community.



49

REVOLVING LOAN FUND (RLF) REPORT 
NOVEMBER 2023 

COVID-19 RLF | TRADITIONAL RLF | CONTRACTED RLF | PACE 

RLF 

The committee consists of five members and meets as needed. The committee covers both the COVID-19 RLF and Traditional RLF. 
The committee last met on November 20.  Two three-month interest only requests were approved.  The committee will meet in De-
cember, TBD, to consider one loan request from a business operating in Windom and another loan request from a business operating 
in Jackson.   

Interest Rates: 

EDA’s guideline for minimum interest rate is 4% under prime, which equates to 4.5% currently, or 75% of prime, whichever is less.  
SRDC RLF has been using 75% of the WSJ (Wall Street Journal) Prime Rate for recent loans, which adheres to regulations governing 
RLF awards.    

Application and Checklist: The Application (fillable — same application for both RLF programs) and Requirements Checklist (this is 
currently being updated to include both SRDC RLF and COVID-19) are online and can be found at http://www.swrdc.org/econom-
ic-development/revolving-loan-funds/. 

EDA Supported RLF Community of Practice: This suggested networking opportunity for EDA-sponsored RLFs has now begun. Staff 
was accepted into the first cohort. The following were training topics: General RLF Tactics, Marketing Strategies, Credit, Underwrit-
ing, Smaller RLF Strategies, Loan Committee, Board Development, Portfolio Management, and Servicing.  The most recent training 
courses were November 16 on Technology and November 30 on Emerging Industries.  The last session for Cohort 1 is scheduled for 
December 14 on Final Thoughts.  

COVID-19 RLF (C-RLF) 

Funds Available: Funds on hand are in the approximate amount of $276,444.06. These funds will remain federalized until seven years 
have passed. Reporting will soon be required twice per year.  

Traditional RLF 
Funds Available: Funds on hand are in the approximate amount of $354,271.77. These funds are defederalized.  

RLF Success Stories 

To promote RLF programs, success stories can now be found at http://www.swrdc.org/economic-development/revolving-loan-funds/
rlf-business-spotlights/. 

Contracted RLFs 
Staff continues to assist inquiries made regarding business start-ups, retentions, expansions, and financing. Staff assists with three 
additional revolving loan fund programs within the region. 

Jackson County RLF: There are seven active loans. County commissioners voiced their continued financial support of the program, 
given funds are minimal. Staff expects one early payoff by year end.  Financing capacity currently via JCRLF is $61,872.12.   

Heron Lake RLF: HLRLF focuses on economic development within a 20-mile radius of Heron Lake. These are Community Development 
Block Grant (CDBG) funds. SRDC continues to assist them with GMS entry and amortization schedules as requested. There are funds 
available for businesses in their service area that have gap financing needs.  The HLRLF committee next meets on December 13 at 10 
a.m. to consider one loan request.   

Falcon Development Corporation (FDC): Information on FDC can be found online at https://www.swrdc.org/revolving-loan-funds/. 
FDC focuses on economic development improvements within a 30-mile radius of Heron Lake. These funds are de-federalized; there-
fore, Davis Bacon does not apply to construction projects. Interest rates can now be as low as 75% of prime. The FDC Board now has 
7 members, which is the maximum. Approximately $50,000 is available for lending; however, FDC does have two CDs which total 
$75,000 that could also be used if needed.  FDC committee next meets on December 13 at 9 a.m.  

 



50

Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) 
General Information: PACE is available to property owners of small businesses, including agri-businesses and some non-profits based 
on usage. Please help spread the word about PACE to property owners looking to make improvements that lower their energy usage. 

Funds Available: Funds are currently available in the approximate amount of PACE ARRA $123,519.87 
And PACE SEP $136,666.20. 

PACE Committee: The committee meets as needed, often in conjunction with RMEB (Rural Minnesota Energy Board) meeting dates. 
The latest committee meeting was September 25.  Committee members are Metz, Wildermuth, Wachal, VanDeVere, and Paap. 
Interest rates for new projects are set at 3% under Prime, with a floor of 3%.  Staff expects to receive an application from a Redwood 
County property by month end.   

C-PACE Statewide Discussions: Staff has been involved in discussions with the MN Department of Commerce as they work on 
expanding the reach of commercial PACE programs in MN. Staff provided project data for a recent DOC application submitted. RDCs 
(Regional Development Commission) will be eligible to apply under an RFP (Request for Proposals). The DOC included within their 
application non-competitive funds of $300,000 to expand the financing capacity of the RMEB PACE program.  Weis is scheduled to 
educate loan committee members in Region 5 Development Commission on January 31 under contract.   

Energy Audits: Energy assessments/audits are informational to property owners and may be the start to cost-saving energy improve-
ments. MN DOC is working on increasing access to energy auditors. Contractor estimates and the energy assessment/audit are the 
two first steps to PACE financing.  There has been an increase in the number of recent referrals made to RETAP.   

PACE Success Stories 

To promote PACE, a success story on Broadway Beauty in Slayton can be found at https://www.swrdc.org/broadway-beauty-salon/.  
Tally Ho Koffie in Edgerton can be found at https://www.swrdc.org/tally-ho-koffiee/.  These stories were also submitted to the local 
papers with several publishing them.   

The PACE application that includes a checklist can be found at http://rmeb.org/pace.htm.  

If you have questions about the RLF, PACE, or energy audits, please contact Robin Weis, Deputy Director, at 507-836-1638 or via 
email at robin@swrdc.org. 

COMMUNICATIONS REPORT 
DECEMBER 2023

Friends of the Casey Jones State Trail: The Friends of Casey Jones met on November 16th at the Slayton, MN Pizza Ranch to reorganize 
and elect new officers. Their next meeting will be held in the SRDC Board Room on Thursday, December 14 at 11:30 am.  Chris and 
Sheila are helping to facilitate their meetings with Sheila being elected as secretary for the group.

Explore Minnesota: Explore Minnesota had a meeting on Tuesday, December 12th at the SRDC. The group is focusing on the upcoming 
year and deciding where to focus their advertising efforts. They received a $5K grant from Explore MN, which must be utilized by June 
30, 2024. The group is required to spend $10,000 on marketing in the first six months of the year. They also discussed the importance 
of having a presence at various travel shows.

Christmas Door Decorating Contest: If you travel the halls of the building, you may notice Christmas has taken over the decor. A Christ-
mas door decorating contest was initiated amongst not only the SRDC employees along with SW Housing Partnership as well. Photos 
have been taken of each door and posted on Facebook to help determine a winner. The SRDC Board will also be asked to vote on their 
favorite.

Board Photos: The staff of SRDC recently had photos taken, and profiles created and shared on Facebook. Shortly, these same profiles 
will become framed photos for the walls of the office. Discussion then took place in regard to doing the same for the SRDC Board 
Members. Each member is asked to fill out the basic profile questionnaire and have a photo taken and each week a member will be 
featured on the SRDC Facebook page.



51

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT REPORT 
NOVEMBER 2023 

ENERGY| LAND USE, PLANNING & ZONING | SOLID WASTE & NATURAL RESOURCES | USDA REGIONAL FOOD BUSINESS CENTER 

ENERGY 
Rural Minnesota Energy Board (RMEB): The board met on November 27 at 1 P.M. During the first hour, members of the Solid Waste 
Commission joined to engage with a waste-to-energy panel. 
The panelists were:  
Tony Hill – Olmsted County Environmental Services/MRRA 
Brief overview of Minnesota Resources Recovery Association - MRRA 
Impact of current facilities – energy generated, landfill capacity saved, etc. 
Current issues from an operator’s perspective 
Brian Martinson – Environment and Natural Resources Policy Analyst; Association of Minnesota Counties 
Legislative overview 
Legislative issues/concerns/implications 
Jared Graham, Director of Plant Operations of Xcel Energy’s Refuse Derived Fuel Plants in Red Wing and Mankato 
Future of Waste-to-Energy from Xcel’s perspective 
Suggestions and recommendations 

The next meeting will be on January 22, 2024, at 1 P.M. 

Clean Energy Resource Teams (CERTs):  

Seed Grants: For community-based projects related to energy efficiency, renewable energy, electric vehicles, and energy storage 
within Minnesota. Our region received 12 applications representing various cities and organizations, including five multiregional proj-
ects. The steering committee met on October 30 to review these proposals, and decided to fund seven of these projects, with varying 
amounts of the $43,000 available. Part of the criteria is that $23,000 needs to go to projects that are “from, led by, and/or include 
meaningful participation by historically underserved populations.”  

The projects funded include: three lighting upgrade projects – two in Slayton (at the library/senior center and in the 4-H building) and 
one in the Comfrey municipal building, a manufactured home building basics training project by Slipstream, an air-source heat pump 
feasibility assessments project by SWMHP, a home education and energy saving program by UCAP, and an energy efficiency video 
storytelling project by Erika Gilsdorf.  

 Seed grants are for projects that: 
 ● Help people learn about clean energy and get energized. 
 ● Build community by engaging a variety of partners. 
 ● Remove barriers, making clean energy more accessible for everyone. 
 ● Are highly visible in the community and can be an example for other communities. 

Renewable Energy Siting through Technical Engagement and Planning (R-STEP) $2 million Grant Proposal: Community Development 
Director Walker has been working with CERTs Co-Director Melissa Birch on the role SRDC would play in their grant proposal. Should 
the Minnesota Siting Collaborative get funded, we anticipate working with other project partners on the following activities as detailed 
in the proposal: contribute content for new and updated resources for local governments and review and comment on resources for 
other audiences; assist with outreach and resource sharing; co-host 1-2 events strengthening dialogue between developers and local 
governments; co-host training sessions with regional development organization and other organizations; and provide technical assis-
tance and/or facilitation in at least two jurisdictions. 

Food Shelves: The Minnesota Department of Human Services recently announced $7 million worth of competitive grants to food 
shelves for technical assistance, to plan and design, acquire, and renovate/transform facilities. This can be used for improvements like 
refrigeration equipment, furnishings, or renewable energy projects such as installing solar panels. Up to 100% of project costs can be 
covered by this grant. With building upgrades and energy efficency projects, food shelves can reduce their operating costs and create a 
more accessible and welcoming environment for their customers. Seven food shelves in our region have shown interest in this oppor-
tunity, and the application deadline was November 16. We will know who has been awarded funds in the next month. 



52

World Mart – Work on completing the battery and modular solar panel installations is still under way. The project team has planned 
a trip to the West Central Research and Outreach Center (WCROC) and the U of M Morris campus for December 14, with some of Na-
thalie’s business partners and a group of U of M engineering students. At WCROC the group is going to learn about the WCROC solar 
trailer and tour their facilities to learn about other renewable energy projects. At the Morris campus, another tour will introduce them 
to a new battery storage project and other green building projects. This tour will help Nathalie and her team with making decisions on 
the installation process and in their clean energy outreach to other food truck vendors. 

Energizing Rural Communities: The second stakeholder meeting was held at the White Earth Tribal and Community College (WETCC) 
in Mahnomen on Wednesday, Dec. 6. This was an opportunity for the college, White Earth Nation, to further clarify needs and assets, 
and highlight partnerships and collaborations that could be strengthened in regard to WETCC’s solar certification program. This is the 
second of three stakeholder meetings that are planned. Notes on what was discussed will then be used to guide the next meeting. 

Land Use, Planning & Zoning 

City of Hills: Planner Webb met with the Hills, MN City Council on Tuesday, November 14, 2023. He presented a proposal for complet-
ing a Strategic Plan/Zoning Ordinance Update for the City. A contract for Technical Assistance is being voted on by the Hills City Council 
on Tuesday, December 12. Planner Webb anticipates that most of the work related to that contract will be completed from January to 
May of 2024.  

SWHHS Strategic Plan: Staff held a second scoping meeting on November 14 with public health leaders serving Lincoln, Lyon, Murray, 
Pipestone, Redwood, and Rock Counties at Southwest Health and Human Services. During that meeting, participants finalized a scope 
for a full strategic plan and made an action plan to address staffing shortages.  Staff submitted a full proposal to conduct the planning 
process in 2024 and agreed to assist with planning for how new funding streams could be spent in the near term. 

Solid Waste & Natural Resources 

Solid Waste Commission:  The Southwest Solid Waste Commission held its regular meeting on November 27, 2023.  Conversation 
among the Commission continued about the MPCA proposed rulemaking on demolition landfills.  Heidi Ringhofer, MPCA, indicated 
there will likely be no ruling by 12-31-23.  Following the regular meeting, several members of the Southwest Solid Waste Commission 
attended the start of the Rural Minnesota Energy Board to hear three panelists who joined the meeting to discuss Waste to Energy 
Facilities.  Panelists included; Tony Hill, Olmsted County Environmental Services/MRRA; Brian Martinson, Environment and Natural 
Resources Policy Analyst- Association of Minnesota Counties; and Jared Grahm, Director of Plant Operations of Xcel Energy’s Refuse 
Derived Fuel Plants in Red Wing & Mankato.      

Regarding the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) proposed Construction & Demolition (C&D) rule changes, Heidi Ringhofer 
(MPCA), has no knowledge of a ruling by December 31, 2023, and it is possible there will be a deadline delay.   

The Southwest Solid Waste Commission is scheduled to meet again on January 22, 2024.

Solid Waste Regional Plan:  
All counties in Minnesota must submit a solid waste plan to receive SCORE funds and apply for additional grants from the MPCA. Doing 
this as a 12-county Joint Powers Agreement not only decreases individual county costs, but helps pull together resources, and arrange 
materials exchange for counties in the Southwest Minnesota Solid Waste Commission.  

There are several issues and topics that will be addressed in the plan. This includes support for 100% SCORE funding to counties for 
Solid Waste and Recycling activities, staff constraints on individual counties, Construction and Demolitions landfill capacity and the 
need for financial support from the state, and the education of the public and policymakers on the importance of sanitation services 
as a foundation for public health. 

The full group of Solid Waste Administrators has not met.  The sub-committee met to talk about the 10-year plan.   A draft plan is due 
June 1, 2024.  The sub-committee acknowledges that our newer staff may not be as experienced as they need to be and agrees that we 
may need to work with a consultant on writing the plan.  We can subcontract under SEH under SRDC’s contract.  Administrator Hart-
man has a contact person with SEH. We are looking at a re-write not a new plan necessarily.  With the issues at hand, we are not ready 
to determine where we will be in 10 years.  SRDC Executive Director Trusty is going to go through the solid waste contract checklist and 
identify the things we can do.  He will send a draft out to the sub-committee for mark-up within the next two weeks



53

USDA Regional Food Business Center 
The USDA Regional Food Business Centers have been established to drive economic opportunities across their regions creating a 
more diversified and resilient food system.  Out of this, the North Central Food Business Center (NCFBC) was formed to include MN, 
ND, SD with a grant amount of $15 million over five years.  The Southwest Regional Development Commission (SRDC) will be com-
pensated $60K per year for providing technical assistance in our region. 

North Central Regional Food Business Center:  
The SRDC continues to reach out and meet with various groups and individuals seeking ideas and suggestions.  We are in the process 
of writing an action plan that will define a foundation to be developed on and refined over the next five years.  Emerging ideas in our 
region are: Commercial Kitchen availability and use; Meat Lockers; Rural Grocery Stores; Transportation needs to get food to people 
and people to food; Education for families to include cooking from scratch and how to preserve foods; area Backpack programs and 
much more.

Staff Strength TrainingStaff Strength Training



54

TRANSPORTATION REPORT 
DECEMBER 2023 

TRANSPORTATION COMMITTEE | ATPs | TRANSPORTATION PLANNING | ACTIVE LIVING & SRTS 

TRANSPORTATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TAC) 

Planner Webb attended the TAC meeting held on December 12 at the MnDOT District 8 headquarters in Willmar. This is the next 
meeting to discuss the Urban Highway Prioritization Study.    

AREAS TRANSPORTATION PARTNERSHIPS (ATP) 

Planners Webb attended the ATP Meeting held on December 8 in Marshall. This meeting discussed the Transportation Alternative 
Projects for the 2028 solicitation.   

TRANSPORTATION PLANNING 

Carbon Reduction Strategy: During summer 2023, MnDOT will gather input from partners and the public to identify priorities to help 
reduce carbon dioxide emissions from on-road highway sources. MnDOT central office has kicked off this effort by contacting Area 
Transportation Partnerships (ATPs) and conducting a survey to help develop the Minnesota Carbon Reduction Strategy (CRS). This 
strategy will be used as a guide into how MnDOT will use/distribute Carbon Reduction Program funds. Minnesota receives approxi-
mately $20.9 million each year and the CRS is a requirement to receive these funds.  
The CRS is due to the federal government by November 15, 2023.  
Link to the survey: https://bit.ly/3C4p5T4  

Portable Counter Borrowing Program: MnDOT has portable counters that are freely available to partner agencies such as cities, 
counties, MPOs, RDCs, and active transportation advocacy groups. These counters help collect important pedestrian traffic data that 
can be used to plan projects, apply for funding, and much more. Counters are available through each MnDOT District Office and can 
be reserved online. More information can be found at https://www.dot.state.mn.us/bike-ped-counting/borrow.html.  

Quarterly Transportation Planners Meeting: Planner Webb and Community Develpoment Director Walker attended the quarterly 
Transportation Planners meeting held in St. Cloud on Nov. 29 and 30. Planner Webb attended in person and Community Develop-
ment Director Walker attended virtually. 

The 2024 meeting scheduled was finalized.  
 February – Virtual Only 
 May – St. Cloud, held in conjunction along with the 2024 MN Transportation Conference 
 August – Bemidji  
 November – St. Cloud  

ACTIVE LIVING & SAFE ROUTES TO SCHOOL (SRTS) 

SRTS Infrastructure 
 $10.9 million available 
 $1 million maximum award – no funding match 
 Constructed in 2024 or 2025 
 Open 10/9 for Letters of Intent – applications due 2/2/24 
 http://www.dot.state.mn.us/saferoutes/infrastructure-grants.html  
 Next October 2024 will be similar funding available 
 This 100% funded grant covers costs to construct infrastructure that improves access and safety on prioritized routes to and at 
schools.  

 Adrian, Windom, Pipestone, Lakefield, and Redwood Falls are making full applications for MnDOT SRTS Infrastructure Grants.   

SRTS Planning Assistance Grant   
This 100% funded grant will include technical assistance to provide an analysis of existing conditions, public outreach and identification 
of potential infrastructure and non-infrastructure solutions to help more children walk and bicycle safely to school.  
The City of Windom, City of Minneota, and City of Lamberton are all potential applicants to apply for this funding in Spring, 2024. 



55

SRTS Design Assistance Grant   
Design assistance is a new form of engineering studies. It intends to bridge the gap between safe routes to school plan strategies and 
implementation. Design assistance reports will verify existing methods and identify new engineering strategies to improve walking and 
bicycling routes to and from schools. The resulting document will include project summary sheets with concept-level drawings and a 
list of potential infrastructure projects prioritized by effectiveness in addressing safety risks, possible usage, and cost. 

Applications are due by January 12.  
Tracy is planning to apply for this Design Assistance Grant Opportunity.  

Active Transportation 
 Funded $4.5 million for applications from 2022 eleven high-scoring projects 
 $13.2 million available – no match funds required 
 Greater MN focused – Met Council has its own AT Funding from sales tax 
 $1 million maximum award – no funding match 
 Constructed in 2024 or 2025 
Open 10/9 for Letters of Intent – applications due 2/2/24 
https://www.dot.state.mn.us/active-transportation-program/infrastructure-grants.html   
Next October 2024 will be similar funding available 
This 100% funded grant covers construction costs to implement infrastructure improvements to make walking, biking, and rolling 
better and safer in your community.  
Jackson, Marshall, and Redwood Falls are making full applications for MnDOT Active Transportation Infrastructure Grants. 

Active Transportation Safety Education 
 Required training for all schools within the first 3 weeks 
 K-3 Pedestrian safety education 
 4-8 Bicycle and Pedestrian safety education 
 $500,000 each year for education 
If funds are left over after meeting the needs of 5–14-year-olds, additional funding may support 15–17-year-olds and adult education, 
and adults learn to ride. 

Transportation Alternative Infrastructure Grant (Federal)  
This 80%/20% funded grant covers construction costs to implement infrastructure improvements to make walking, biking, and rolling 
better and safer in your community.  

City of Marshall (District 8) is currently applying for 2 TAP Infrastructure Grants for solicitation year 2028.  

Rock County was awarded $573,902 in TAP Federal Grant Funds to complete rehab of the Blue Mounds County Trail that connects the 
City of Luverne’s Trail Loop to the Blue Mounds State Park. The rehab project also includes 3.2 miles of trail inside of the Blue Mounds 
State Park. The county will coordinate with the DNR to complete this project in 2025.    

REGIONAL TRAILS PLANNING 
Planners Webb and Bucklin are spearheading this project. Communications Specialist Crowley produced a new Quarterly Newsletter 
that went out at the end of October. A stakeholder meeting was held at the SRDC Board Room on Tuesday, December 5 at 2 pm to 
discuss the latest updates and to determine focus groups and interviews to conduct this winter. 

Funding partners include Cottonwood, Jackson, Lincoln, Lyon, Murray, Nobles, Pipestone, and Rock Counties, and the Cities of Wabas-
so, Lamberton, Walnut Grove, and Revere. 

Friends of the Casey Jones State Trail: The Friends of Casey Jones met on November 16th at the Slayton, MN Pizza Ranch to reorganize 
and elect new officers. Their next meeting will be held in the SRDC Board Room on Thursday, December 14 at 11:30 am.      

The Friends were successful in receiving a bonding bill request for $1.32 million for the development of the Casey Jones State Trail. 
Thank you to Senators Weber and Dahms and Representative Schomacker for authoring bills in the House and Senate. The Friends 
has also learned of an opportunity for land acquisition funding through DNR and will be working on speaking to landowners between 
Woodstock and Lake Wilson to see if a route can be determined and land purchased. A request for bids is currently out for paving the 
final 2 miles into Woodstock. If there is money left over, work will provide for the development of a trailhead and small parking lot. 
Construction is expected this summer. Reconstruction of the Currie Loop segments is expected to begin in 2024.



Executive Director’s Report 
DECEMBER 2023 

 November was a very busy month leading into another busy December.  Dennis and Robin and I attended the NADO Annual Training 
Conference in Cleveland at the beginning of the month, my report on the conference is attached.   

Prior to the November Commission meeting, I conducted new member orientation for Commissioners Bittner, McClure and Kottke.  If 
there are any Commissioners who haven’t been through orientation yet, or who would like a refresher, please let me know and we’ll 
get something scheduled. 

We held our quarterly in-person MADO Executive Director meeting at the end of November in Bloomington.  We met as a group with 
Sacha-Rose Phillips from the McKnight Foundation to discuss funding for capacity building in rural areas as well as with Frank Kolash 
from MPCA to discuss the availability of funds from MPCA for a number of different purposes.  The RDCs have all applied for the De-
partment of Commerce’s Competitiveness Fund.  This will help the RDCs, and other organizations identified in the statute passed last 
session, to add capacity for grant writing assistance to local units of government to apply for federal IRA or IIJA dollars, (Bipartisan In-
frastructure Law and Inflation Reduction Act). The application was due on November 13th. Staffing continues to be an issue with many 
of the RDCs as experienced staff are heavily recruited for either other government positions or for positions in the private sector that 
typically pay more and have better benefits.   The private sector in particular seems to be using flexible scheduling and hybrid or remote 
work opportunities to recruit.  Alejandra and Kristian from Region 9 gave a presentation on the various forms of immigrant work visas 
and what they mean and how to use them.  There was much discussion about H1B visas, and the difference between those and the 
H2B visas which many of the workers at Prime Pork in Windom had. 

To help our staff members identify their strengths and explore the strengths of others, we conducted a StrengthsFinder’s Discovery 
session on November 17th. Darla Waldner, who is the Executive Director of the Northwest Regional Development Commission and a 
Certified Trainer, lead the session and one of her staff assisted. We all took the assessment again to see what our strengths are.  The 
session went well, and it offered staff a chance to get to know each other a little better as well.   

Once again, MADO had a booth at the Association of Minnesota Counties Annual Conference.  This year’s conference was at the Minne-
apolis Hyatt.  Executive Directors and/or staff from many of the RDCs were in attendance.  On Thursday after AMC, the RDCs and other 
invitees that provide technical assistance in rural areas attended an all day workshop put on by the McKnight Foundation in St. Paul to 
discuss and identify gaps in service provision in the rural areas and what needs exist to make sure that the rural areas have adequate 
capacity to access state and federal program dollars as they become available.

 
 

56



1 

 

   
November 7 - 10, 2023 

Hilton Cleveland Downtown  

Cleveland, Ohio 
 
Tuesday, November 7th Highlights 

 

Concurrent Session: Making it Count:  Achieving, Measuring and Reporting Results with 

Data Analysis 

 

Alison Turner, Senior Economic Development Researcher for the Argonne National 

Laboratory.  Ms. Turner gave a presentation on a research project the lab did at the behest 

of EDA and the tools that they developed/updated, the National Economic Resilience 

Data Explorer, (NERDE) and the Economic Development Capacity Index.  NERDE 

presents data by both Economic Development District and at the county level. 

https://www.anl.gov/dis/national-economic-resilience-data-explorer-nerde  

https://www.anl.gov/dis/economic-development-capacity-index  

 

A survey of NADO members was conducted in 2020, the results of which highlighted the 

data most often requested: 

 

 52% of identified data sources were national (Census, BEA, BLS etc.)  27% 

mentioned State specific data sources  Demographics data is the most widely accessed 

 Clear desire for data around: – Labor market – Economic forecast – Corporate interest 

 

Ms. Turner also defined the 3-D principals of data: 

 

 Discovery 

– Asking questions 

– Understanding Space, Time, and 

Source 

 

 Diagnosis 

– Evaluation of quality 

57



2 

 

– Relationships between metrics 

 

 Decision Making 

– Coming back to the question 

 

Concurrent Learning Lab: Equitable Regional Development: Looking through the Lens 

of Wealth Creation: Doing Economic Development Differently 

 

Melissa Levy, Regional Development Researcher/Wealth Creation Specialist, and Carrie 

Kissel, Associate Director from the NADO Research Foundation led a class on how to 

put the wealth creation approach into practice through the use of asset inventories, SWOT 

analysis, strategy development, and evaluation.  We each picked an example from our 

region. I used renewable energy and highlighted the built environment and the political 

willingness around the development of wind in the region.  The group then broke down 

into smaller groups to do asset mapping of specific scenarios that were provided by the 

instructors, such as a brewery and a bio-fuel plant.   

 

 

Thursday, November 9th Highlights (I laid low in my room on Wednesday because of a 

nasty head cold). 

 

Concurrent Session: Equitable Regional Development: Equity and Inclusion 

Fundamentals 

 

Chinenye Nkemere, Director of Strategy, and Bethany Studenic, Managing Director of 

Enlightened Solutions gave a presentation on Diversity and Inclusion in Rural and Semi-

rural areas. Some of the more interesting things I learned at this session was that there are 

huge generational differences, America has become increasingly diverse with each 

generation. For Americans under 18, there is no racial majority. By 2045, there will be no 

racial majority in the U.S.  In our region, of course, Worthington has already reached this 

milestone. While many think of diversity as only an urban phenomenon, 22% of rural 

populations are racially/ethnically diverse and that percentage will only get higher, 

especially as the younger generations move to more rural areas. In many areas of the 

country the rise of remote working has led to the in-migration of families to rural areas. 

 

Concurrent Session: Regional Resilience, Renewable and Resilient Energy Solutions for 

Your Region 

 

Matthew Popkin, Manager, US Cities & Communities, Rocky Mountain Institute, Sam 

Sharp from Region 9 in Mankato, and Mike Foley, Director, Department of Sustainability 

– Cuyahoga County, Ohio talked about different ways to increase energy resiliency 

locally.  Region 9 talked about their partnership with Greater MSP on the development of 

a Bio-Economy Development Zone and some of their work on resiliency planning with 

their communities.  The highlight for me was the discussion of “brightfields”  or the 

development of renewable energy projects sited on top of brownfields, especially in 

urban areas.  This was a good lead into the Mobile Workshop that I went on with 

58



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2401 Broadway Avenue, Suite 1 

Slayton, MN 56172 

www.swrdc.org 


